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S.TATEMENT OF GEORGE M. TUNISON, TRIBAL ATTORNEY OF THE 
CONFEDERATED SALISH AND KOOTENAI TRIBES OF THE FLAT­
HEAD RESERVATION, MONT. 

Mr. TUNISON. With your kind permission, I would like to move 
that map ov~r here near this spot that it will be readily available. 

My name 1s George M. Tunison, attorney at law, of Omaha, Nebr. 
For many_ years, I have been attorney under contract with the Fed­
erated Tribes of the Flathead Reservation in Montana. I may add 
th~t I have ~lso during those years been attorney for the Shoshone 
Tribe of Indians of the Wind River Reservation in Wyoming. Those 
are the only t'Yo tribes, or individual Indians, whom I represent. 

Repre_sentative BERRY. I wonder if it would not be better if you 
would s~t down there so that you can talk into that microphone. I 
wonder if the people in the room can hear the witness. This room is 
pretty large, Mr. Tunison, and we want everyone to hear. 

Mr. TUNISON. Very well, Mr. Chairman. I will add that I have 
prepared a nine-page typewritten memorandum which I will hand 
to the reporter at the close of my address, and which I would appre­
ciate having placed in the record at that time. 

Now, I would like to state to the committee that this map which is 
an official Interior Department map from the office of the clerk of the 
committee shows the various land accessions of the United States, and 
the green area in the upper left-hand corner is labeled on that map, 
"Oregon Territory, American title established in 1846." 

Now, you will observe from that map that it begins at what is now 
the lower line of Oregon, and the southern line of Idaho, and extends 
into what is now a part of Wyoming. From thence, it goes along the 
Continental Divide up to the Canadian line, where the Continental 
Divide comes out into Canada and then along the 49th parallel to 
the Pacific Ocean. Then it goes south to the plare of beginning. 
That was the 1846 accession of that territory to the Dominion of the 
United States. That territory had prior thereto been a debatable 
ground as to whether Great Britain owned it or whether America 
owned it, and certain claims of France and even of Russia were in­
volved therein. But that was all settled by this treaty of 1846. 

Now I mention that point for this reason, that the Indians residing 
in that territory of which the Federated Salish and Kootenai Tribes 
that I represent were the original owners of that territory. They 
.were there before there was any Declaration of Independence and 
they were there before there was any Constitution of the United 
States, and they actually owned and occupied that land. The land 
owned by the Salish people, the Federated Salish and Kootenai 
Tribes, is what is known as western Montana, which appears on this 
map beginning at the Canadian line, at the Continental Divide, and 
coming right down along that Continental Divide line to. a point 
immediately southeast of Butte, and Anaconda, and then gomg west 
along the Continental Divide to the Bitter Roots. Then it·goes back 
up along the Bitter Roots and the Purcell Mountains to the Canadian 
line. 

That territory included 16 million acres of land, and in that present 
territory there is located this present Flathead Reservation of one mil­
lion and a half acres of land. 
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The reason it is called a reservation, gentlemen, is that the Fl~t­
heads own that land. That was their country :from time immemorial 
and no one has ever disputed that, and they granted that land to ~he· 
United States. The United States did not set aside this reservation 
:for those people. They granted the 16 million acres to the United 
States. That point has recently been decided by the Supreme Court 
o:f Montana in the case o:f the State of Montana ex re Irvine v. Dis­
trict Court. Fourth Jiudicial District, December 20, 1951. It is cited 
in 239, Pacific, Second, and volume 6 o:f the Montana State Reporter, 
at page 163, in which the court said and it will be interesting to you 
gentlemen to know that the court that wrote this opinion, or the judge· 
who wrote this opinion :for the Montana Supreme Court, is now a 
Member o:f Cqngress :from the Second Montana District, Congress­
man Metcalf, and here is the language used in 1951 : 

It should be noted that the Flathead Indian Reservation was created by 
the Hell Gate Treaty of 1855-------

RepresentatiYe BERRY. I do not think that these :folks can hear,. 
and I think that you "'.ill have to spe!1-k into the microphone. 

Mr. TtrNISON. All right, Mr. Chairman. -It was oreatecl. by the· 
treaty o:f 1855-
between the Indian tribes called the Flathead Nations and the Federal Govern­
ment-

and this is the significant language, your honors 
the treaty with the Indians was not a grant of rights to the Indians but it 
was a grant of rights from the Indians with a reservation remaining to them .. 

In other words, the point emphasized in that decision is that, when 
the Flatheads ceded this 16, million acres o:f land to the United States 
:for general public purposes, they did the ceding and they did the· 
reserving, and this present reservation which is now before your 
committee :for consideration was reserved. Nobody gave it to them. 
So the court continued: 

Consideration has been given to the State's argument in regard to our enabl­
ing act and the provisions thereof. The answer to that argument is that the· 
admission of the State into the Union even without any express reservation by 
Congress of governmental jurisdiction over the public lands within its borders 
does not qualify the former Federal jurisdiction over tribal Indians. What­
ever rights a State acquires by its enabling act are subordinate to the Indians'· 
prior right of occupancy. 

Then he cited United States v. Thomas and another case. 
That is the latest decision o:f the supreme court o:f the State m 

which these lands are located. 
Now, going back to our story, gentlemen, after this Oregon oession 

o:f 1846, next came the act separating the north half o:f that country 
:from Oregon and :from what is now Idaho and creating the State 
o:f Oregon. Next came the election o:f Franklin Pierce in 1853, I 
think it was, and President Pierce appointed an Army major named 
Major Stevens to make a survey o:f the country :from St. Paul and 
Minneapolis to the Pacific coast. It was with a view o:f lining up a 
railroad-and I will say that is presently the line o:f the Northern 
Pacific Railway-and o:f establishing :friendly relations with the 
Indians along the route o:f that railroad. He appointed him the 
first Territorial Governor o:f the State o:f Washington. 
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He went out there in 1853 and started from St. Paul and Minne­
apolis. He met different tribes along the road, and he met with the 
Flath~ads in the Flathead Valley. He went on out to Olymria and 
est~bhshed the Territorial government of the State of Washmgton, 
which at that time extended from the Pacific Ocean to the Rocky 
Mountains, and the territory at that time on the east side of the 
Rocky_ Mountains was a part of the territory of the great and 
sovereign State of Nebraska. 

Governor Cummings, of Nebraska, came up the river at the time 
,of this treaty and met Governor Stevens over on the Judith River and 
ma<le the first common hunting ground treaty with th~ Blackf~et. 

So these people who came into that country followmg Lewis and 
Clark in 1804 and 1805 were fur traders. They were the Hudson 
Bay Co. The first Hudson's Bay Co. post established in that country 
was on this present Flathead Reservation, known as Fort Connah, 
:and it was established by the grandfather of ,valter :McDonald who 
sits here, the present chairman of the tribal council, and who has 
lived there since his birth, and the McDonald family have lived there 
.all of these years. 

The Hudson's Bay factor married a Flathead Indian woman, raised 
a large family, and the descendants of that family are presently on that 
reservation and active in tribal affairs. 

After these first early trappers came in, Father DeSmet came up 
the Missouri River from St. Louis in 1840, and in 1841 he established 
on the Flathead Reservation the old St. Mary's Mission down there on 
the Bitter Root. That church has been active in the affairs of this 
tribe from that time to the present, and I see represented here by 
Father Birn, the local parish priest from the St. Ignatius territory, 
who will tell you his story when the time comes. 

These three tribes, following that first trip of Major Stevens across 
there, were united largely, I will admit, by Governor Stevens' negotia­
tions into one tribe, known as the Confederated Salish and Kootenai 
'Tribes. That included the Flatheads, in the southern part of that 16 
million acres and the Pend d'Oreilles in the middle part and the Koo­
tenais in the northern part. But they were united into the Confed­
erated Salish and Kootenai Tribes, and they signed this treaty. 

Now, following that first visit, Governor Stevens returned to Wash­
ington and told his story to Jefferson Davis and to the President, the 
then Secretary of the Interior, and he was commissioned to go out and 
make a treaty with these three tribes whereby they would cede this 16 
million acres of land to the United States and agree to go on a reserva­
tion. 

In that treaty there was no mealy-mouthed words about when it 
should last or how long it should last. It said, "This is to be a reserva­
tion for your tribe." It did not say it was to be for 10 years or for 100 
years or 50 years or another period. "It is for your absolute and un­
disturbed use and occupation, as an Indian reservation." 

I wish to say to this committee on behalf of this tribe, and the unan­
imous resolutions of its business council that is the position of this tribe 
today, that they are entitled to keep that territory which belonged to 
them long before there was a United States, and which they ceded with 
a reservation of thi.s particular Indian reservation to themselves, and 
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they are entitled to keep that as an Indian reservation as long as they 
want to keep it as an Indian reservation. 

The argument I have heard here advanced-and I say this part a~­
gumentatively-that the United States has the right to termina~e this­
treaty with those Indians wi_thout consultation with_ them, w1th~mt 
offering them any compensat10n for the loss of huntmg and fishmg 
rights which are guaranteed to them in that treaty, for the loss of their 
other incidental rights involved in that treaty, because simply you have 
the power and simply because this committee and this Congress has the 
power to do that-that, to my mind, is a whole new concept of the deal­
ings of the United States with either a sovereign nation or an Indian 
tribe. 

What this tribe wants is the right to have their right to own and oc-· 
cupy that reservation in perpetuity. Now, I will grant that if this 
Congress or any other nation wishes to abrogate and violate a treaty 
it has the perfect right to do that.. But common fair dealing requires: 
that when you do that you at least call in the other party and say, "We 
as a Government have decided that it would be better for you and 
better for us to terminate this treaty and we want to terminate the 
treaty ,Yith you gentlemen." · 

That has not b2en the approach of this Congress or these present 
bills to this problem. Now, on the vital question of taxation, which 
is what this bill means and which the committee has very frankly 
stated at these hearings, it is the intention of these bills to put all of 
this property on the tax rolls. 

Now, there has been talk here about $70 million, and I ask the com­
mittee, Where is any $70 million? Who is talking about $70 million? 
What products are they talking about? 

The statement was made here that Kerr Dam is worth $30 million. 
Well, the Kerr Dam brings in to these Indians $200,000 a year. That 
is the contract price, and that covers a long period of years yet to come. 
Now, what is something worth which produces $200,000 a y~ar? Do. 
any of you gentlemen know how to figure that at 4 percent '1 You can 
figure what the value of it is. To talk about that being worth $30 
million is the height of absurdity. 

Now, the same statement is made about our tribal lands being' 
worth $40 million. Now, the evidence that you have here is that the 
most they have ever brought in per year is $600,000, and that figure 
is arrived at at a term of high lumber prices and under the sustained­
yield program outlined by the Bureau of Forestry, and that yield in 
normal times will swing to at least a third, around $200,000. Now, 
again, what are forest lands which produce $200,000 per year worth? 
Are they worth $40 million, which figure has been indicated here? I 
say that as a matter of commonsense anybody knows they are worth 
about what they will earn at 4 percent. 

Now, when you put those lands again under taxation, which this 
bill clearly contemplates, how much will be left no one knows. It 
seems to me the fundamental thing is, have these people got rio-hts 
in land which they own before any of us here were present, ages before 
that, which they reserved to themselves. Have you a right to say 
now at the end of 100 years, "Gentlemen, you fellows have been pretty 
good Indians, and we are going to cut you loose and make you the 
same as any other American citizen"? 
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The question was raised this morning about the common immigrant. 
I say the common immigrant brought nothing to this country except in 
the case of most of them a determination to work and a willingness 
to work, but these people whose affairs are now before you gentlemen 
-yvere here a~d they were the owners of this country. ·when they ceded 
it to t~e _Umted States, they reserved this reservation. It is my hum­
ble ?pmion,_ as one who has been for a good many years interested in 
Indian_ affairs, that is not fair and just treatment to these Indians. 

I might say, in conclusion, that it was our Shoshone case in the 
~upreme Court of the United States some 15 years ago which estab­
hs~ed the doctrine that Indians on a treaty reservation own every­
thmg on ~hat reservation, the coal and the oil and the minerals and 
all of their resources. Prior to that time, that had been a kind of 
debatable question. Many people in the Interior Department and in 
the Derartment of Justice took the position that all the Indian had 
was a right to occupancy, and that he could cut a little timber for his 
domestic purposes, and his fencing, but that the latent hidden resources 
were retained by the United States. 

Well, that Shoshone case settled that rule, and since that day there 
has been no question but what the Indians on a tribal reservation under 
a treaty own everything that was there. So that these Indians own 
everything that is on their reservation, and they are entitled to have it 
and maintain it without this kind of legislation which ,-vill subject 
it to taxes and which, in my judgment, based on many years of "·hat 
I believe to be considered sound experience with Indian matters, will 
result in the loss of that property. They do not want that. 

Now, Mr. Chairman, I thank you for your consideration, and I 
think that I have given you the picture. 

Representative BERRY. Well, Mr. Tunison, I just have a question 
or two. How would you suggest that the people ever get their rights 
to the property? 

Mr. TUNISON. The people, Your Honor, have all of the rights to the 
property they need now, the ones that own property there, like these 
men who are going to appear before you. They occupy the land and 
they farm it, but they do not pay taxes on it. 

Representative BEERY. Would you think that if a majority of the 
Indians favored this legislation or similar legislation, whateYer they 
wanted, that should terminate this treaty that you are talking about? 

Mr. TUNISON. I think if a majority of those Indians living on that 
reservation and using that reservation want to terminate this treaty, 
they have a right to do it; yes. 

Representative BERRY. You think it should be limited to those who 
live on the reservation? 

Mr. TUNISON. That is right. 
RepresentatiYe BERRY. Do you think that those who have left the 

reservation do have property rights in that property? 
Mr. TUNISON. Yes, sir; and I agree that in the event of a dissolution 

or termination of that reservation, they should receive their propor­
tionate share. 

Representative BERRY. But they should not have anything to say 
about what should be done with it? 

Mr. TUNISON. No, sir; for the reason that the Wheeler-Howard 
Act under which that tribe is organized, and to which it has faithfully 
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adhered, provides that only Indians living on the reservation, the 
charter of incorporation issued under that act, provides that only the 
Indians living on the reservation shall have a right to vote on the 
disposition of tribal property. Those who have seen fit to stay there, 
Your Honor, and make that their home, are the people who are inter­
ested in the heritage received from their Great Chief Victor, whose 
son, incidentally, sits here in this room, and will testify later. That 
has been their home and it is the home of their ancestors, and the home 
where their ancestors are buried, and those that want to stay there 
and live there, some 2,000 of them, are the people who should decide 
what should be done with it. 

Representative BERRY. How long do you think it should be before 
they should be given an opportunity to have their property i 

Mr. TmnsoN. Well, I do not agree, or I cannot grasp the concept 
of Your Honor's question, "agree to have their property." They 
already have their property. 

Representative BERRY. Subject to the supervision of the Federal 
Government, is that right i 

Mr. TuNISON. That is right. 
Representative BERRY. What does the treaty say, Mr. Tunison, with 

regard to this i Is there anything in the treaty i 
Mr. TuNISON. Very well, sir, I will be glad to read you the exact 

words of it. The treaty states, in article 1--
Representative BERRY. Is that the 1855 treaty i 
Mr. TuNISON. Yes, and that is the only treaty this tribe has ever 

had with the Government. Article 1 said that-
the Confederated Tribes of Indians hereby cede, relinquish, and convey to the 
United States all of their rights, title, and interest, in and to the country 
occupied or claimed by them and bounded and described as follows. 

Then, there is the description which is shown on the map I have 
already indicated to you, starting with Canada and coming down the 
Continental Divide and then over to the Bitter Roots and then north 
along the Bitter Roots and the Purcell Mountains to Canada agam, 
and back to the place of beginning. 

That is the description. Article 2 is: 
There is, however, reser_ved from the lands above ceded­

and this is the language that I think you want­
for the use and occupation of the said Confederated Tribes. 

It says for the use and occupation of the said Confederated Tribes 
and as a general Indian reservation on which may be placed othe; 
friendly tribes from the Territory of Washington under the common 
designation of the Flathead Nation, head chief of the Flathead Tribe 
as the h~ad chief, that tract of land included _within the following 
boundaries, and then they set out the boundaries of the reservation 
which you gentlemen are dealing with, and which is presently occu­
pied by the tribe. 

Then, the treaty goes on in the next paragraph: 
All of which tract shall be set apart and so far as necessary surveyed and 

marked out for the exclusive use and benefit of said Confederated Tribes as an 
Indian reservation. 

Then, it goes on-
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FEDERAL SUPERVISION OVER CERTAIN TRIBES OF INDIANS 927 

Nor shall any white man except those employed by the Government­
and so on. 

Those are the vital words 0£ that treaty. It says: 
There is reserved for the use and occupation of said tribes all of which tracts 

shall be set apart, surveyed, and marked out for the exclusive use and benefit 
of said Confederated Tribes as an Indian reservation. 

I submit on that point--
Representative BERRY. It does not say under the jurisdiction 0£ 

the Federal Government or anything like that, though, does it? 
If they should form an association or a corporation to handle their 

own aff airs7 would it not be covered by this treaty, and it is for their 
own exclusive use and benefit? 

Mr. TUNISON. The tribes themselves, you mean? . 
I£ the tribes are willing to give up that exclusive use and benefit 

provision, you mean? 
Representative BERRY. But this does not take the exclusive use and 

benefit from the tribal property; does it? By that I mean this bill. 
Mr. TUNISON. No, it provides for a patent in fee to this tribe and 

then they are in the same position as your chairman has indicated 
repeatedly in this hearing, as· any other citizen of the United States. 
Now, the position 0£ this tribe is that they are in a better position 
and they had something which the United States wanted, and they 
ceded that to the Unitl'd States for a valuable consideration, and 
they are entitled to the benefit 0£ that bargain. That is the position 
0£ this tribe. 

Representative BERRY. In other words, if the property were not 
taxable, would that withdraw your objection? 

Mr. TUNISON. Yes, sir, and I think that this tribe would be happy to 
take their reservation and run it themselves and the Government could 
leave them alone i£ they wanted to but do not put us on the tax roll. 

Representative BERRY. There is just one niore thing that I would 
like to ask you and that is this: You say that under the Wl.rneler­
Howard Act, the nonreservation Indians have no right in the opera­
tion 0£ that reservation? 

Mr. TUNISON. That is right. For your honor's information, I will 
be ,glad to read that to you. 

Representative BERRY. I will take your word for it. Do you not 
think that all Indians under this treaty and their children and grand­
children of all 0£ the Indians covered in this treaty have a vested 
right in that reservation, in the property 0£ that reservation, the 
assets 0£ that reservation? 

Mr. TUNISON. Yes, sir. 
Representative BERRY. Then, when the Wheeler-Howard Act took 

their rights away from them, is that not taking from them a con­
stitutional right? 

Mr. TUNISON. No. Any Indian who is an enrolled member 0£ this 
tribe that wants to live on that reservation has a perfect right to go 
there and live on it. 

Representative BERRY. There are about 4,000 Indians; are there 
not? 

Mr. TuNISON. Yes. 
Representative BERRY. They are the enrolled Indians? 

44734-54-pt. 7-11 
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Mr. TUNISON. Yes, sir. . 
Representative BERRY. How many 0£ them live on the reservation 1 
Mr. TUNISON: About half 0£ them. 
Representative BERRY. And they are getting alo~g fairly ~e~l with 

2,000. That is probably about all that the area will carry; 1s it not? 
Mr. TUNISON. I would say so; yes. . 
Representative BERRY. And by this, you are trymg to_ force the 

other 2,000 to come back and all 4,000 live on the reservation so that 
none 0£ them can make a living; is that right? 

Mr. TUNISON. Not at all, sir, and I decline to have those words _put 
in my mouth and we are not trying to force anybody to do anythmg. 
But, I am saying to you that the descendants 0£ the people ,,ho made 
this treaty have a right to stay there and use that reservation, and i£ 
anybody wants to get up and go to Seattle, or Washington, they have 
a perfect right to do so. 

But the people who live there and use and occupy that reservation 
and produce its products with their own hands are the ones who ought 
to have. the management 0£ it. 

Representative BERRY. But you are taking property away from in­
dividuals without any compensation, and not just compensation, but 
any compensation; are you not? 

Mr. TUNISON. No; we simply formed this corporation under the 
Wheeler-Howard Act, and we are adhering strictly to it. Now, i£ 
you want to repeal it--

Representation BERRY. It may not be constitutional though; may 
it? 

Mr. TuNISON. No one has seen fit to attack it as yet. 
Representative HARRISON. Does the Wheeler-Howard Act provide 

that only those residents who live on the reservation may vote on the 
disposition and use 0£ the tribal property? Is that in the Flathead 
constitution? 

Mr. TUNISON. Yes. Let me read what it says. I will be glad to 
do that. 

Representative HARRISON. That is under the Wheeler-Howard Act? 
Mr. TUNISON. Yes, sir. 
Representative HARRISON. Now, are the rights 0£ the enrolled mem­

bers vested property rights? 
Mr. TUNISON. That is a pretty broad statement, but will you elab­

orate a little on what you mean by vested property rights? 
Representative HARRISON. You know what I mean, Mr. Tunison, as 

an attorney, are the tribal rights 0£ all enrolled members vested prop­
erty rights. Do the property rights vest in the individuals? And, are 
they rights 0£ which you cannot divest them? 

Mr. TuNISON. Yes. I would say that is a general question and I 
would answer that, yes. 

Representative HARRISON. Then are they such rights 0£ property 
as are protected by the due process clause to the fifth amendment of 
the Constitution? 

Mr. TUNISON. I will grant that they are. 
Representative HARRISON. What becomes 0£ constitutionality 0£ the 

,Vlieeler-Howard Act, then? 
Mr. TUNISON. Now, listen, your honor, i£ you want to debate the 

constitutionality 0£ that act--
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Representative HARRISON. I am asking a question and the w:itness 
can ~ay he does not or does want to answer it, but I a~ not gomg to 
get. mto an argument with him. I am asking a quest10n and I am 
entitled to an answer. 

Senator W A'TKINS. Can you answer it, Mr. Tunison? 
Mr: T1!Niso~. I do not presume to pass in a judicial capacity on the 

constitut10nahty of an act of this Congress. You know as much about 
it as I do. 

Representative HARRISON. Your position is that you just prefer not 
to answer that question; is that right? 

Mr. TUNISON. I prefer not to pass on the constitutionality of it. 
Representative HARRISON. I am not asking you on that. I merely' 

as_ked_ you. a question of what, in your opinion, becomes of the con­
st1tut10nahty of the Wheeler-Howard Act. 

Mr. TUNISON. In my opinion, then, I will say that the Flatheads 
had a perfect right to adopt this charter, which was submitted to the 
Secretary of the Interior, and was approved by him. 

Representative HARRISON. Nobody has questioned that, Mr. Tuni­
son, and I am merely saying if these are vested property rights and 
come under the fifth amendment would the Wheeler-Howard Act then, 
in your opinion, be constitutional if it deprives those who lived off the 
reservation and owning vested rights from a vote on the use and 
disposition of their property. 

Mr. TUNISON. There are two "ifs" in there, and I prefer to go back 
to the fundamental doctrine that the tribe has the right to develop its 
own membership and this tribe could, if it saw fit, revise its rolls, and 
say only those living on this reservation are entitled to be enrolled 
here. 

Now, the tribe has not done that, and it has continued to carry these 
people, although they reside in various cities, on its rolls. But, it is 
entirely within the management and purview of these Indians to 
1-estrict the management of that reservat10n to those who prefer to stay 
there and live. 

Represen1 ative HARRISON. Such action on the part of any council 
or any of those on the reservation voting would certainly violate our 
due procesH laws, would they not, of the fifth amendment? 

Mr. TUNISON. No, sir; it would not. 
Representative HARRISON. Your position is that they can vote to 

take away and divest these people who reside off the reservation and 
divest themselves of their property rights and their interests in tribal 
assets. 

Mr. TUNISON. I do not think that question is involved, but I will say 
this, that this treaty set aside this reservation as a home for these 
people belonging to this tribe. Now, if one of them sees fit to be in 
Seattle or to go to Washington, there is a grave question there whether 
he still retains that right or not. But the tribe has never raised that 
question. The tribe has continued to carry them on the rolls. That is 
a moot question there. 

RepresentatiYe Harrison. It might be a moot question, Mr. Tunison, 
to some individuals, but I would say it would be far from a moot 
question to the individuals concerned with it. 

Mr. TuN1soN. Nobody has raised it on them. It is a moot question 
until someone raises it. 
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Representative HARRIRON. I am raising a question as a matter of in­
formation at the present time. 

Representative D'EwART. The question has been raised many times 
before our committee and only recently in this session in the case of 
the Fort Peck Reservation. The House committee very clearly deter­
mined that we did not have the right to divest any tribal member of his 
right in the tribal estate. 

Mr. TUNISON. That is right. Nobody is trying to divest any 
tribal member here. 

Representative D'EwART. Then, I do not understand what you are 
trying to do if you say that those who leave the reservation, who are 
on the tribal rolls, still lose their right to the tribal assets. 

Mr. TUNISON. I do not say that. 
Representative D'EwART. That is what I inferred from your 

remarks. 
Mr. TUNISON. If you interpret any of my remarks that way, I would 

like you to have the reporter tell me where I said that, and I did not 
say that. 

Representative D'EwART. Did you not try to convince this commit­
tee that if an Indian left the Flathead Reserrntion, he thereby lost 
some right in this tribal estate? 

Mr. TumsoN. I did not, and I said he is carried on the rolls and 
he gets his full share of anything that they receive. The tribal of­
ficers pay out in per capita payments whenever they get a few hundred 
dollars ahead. They pay it out to everybody on the rolls. 

Representative D'EwART. That is right, but you did, if my memory 
is right, say they were divested of their right in the management of 
that estate. 

Mr. TUNISON. What I said, and I will repeat it, is that the tribal 
constitution issued to this tribe by this Government contains a pro­
vision that only those who have resided on the reservation for a period 
of 1 year have the right to vote on the management of the reservation. 
Now, to my mind, that is a clear proposition, and that is the position of 
the tribe. 

Representative D'Ew1'RT. And you argue that it does not in any 
way divest a Flathead Indian of any rights whatsoever when he leaves 
the reservation? 

Mr. TuNISON. No. I do not agree about it at all. I say that that 
tribal Indian who has left the reservation gets his share of any income 
that reservation has. 

Senator WATKINS. May I ask this: Is the right to participate in the 
management worth anything? 

Mr. TUNISON. To the Indian; very much. 
Senator WATKINS. And to the Indians who have left the reservation, 

is it worth anything? 
Mr. TUNISON. Apparently not; they have gone off and left it. 
Senator WATKINS. Well, now, just as a matter of policy, Mr. Tuni­

son, is it not the likely effect of such a proposal that if it were meant 
that they could not have any voice in anything would it not be that it 
would be tantamount to saying to these Indians the only way you can 
realize fully all of your rights is to come back to the reservation and 
stay there? 
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Mr. TUNISON. No; it would not at all. 
Senator WA'l'KINS. H you go away, you say, you do not have any 

vote on what disposition may be made of that property. That is what 
you are J?roposing, an4 you are saying only the Indian~ who _live on the 
reservation have the right to determine the future pohcy with respect 
to the management of this reservation. 

Mr. TUNISON. No; what I am saying--
Senator WATKINS. That is all that is involved here and we are not 

trying to take away the property. 
Mr: TUNISON. Yes; you are when you put it on the tax rolls. I dif­

fer w~th you on that. I am telling you as one with as many years of 
experience in Indian affairs as any man in this room that that is what 
you are doing to these people when you put their property on the tax 
rolls. 

Senator WATKINS. We are only doing this: We are saying to you 
Indians, "You want the advantages of American citizenship and you 
want to enjoy what the rest of the taxpayers are paying, and you want 
to sit in the legislatures and you want to sit on county commissions and 
fix the tax rates for everyone else, and you want all of those privileges, 
and you do not want to submit any of your property to help carry the 
burden of the things that you enjoy along with the rest of American 
citizens," over and above anything guaranteed to them in the treaty. 

Mr. TUNISON. All right. You are entirely disregarding the con­
sideration which these three tribes furnished in exchange for that 
exemption. You paid no attention to the language of that treaty. 

Senator WATKINS. There was nothing said in that, as I remember, 
about taxes; is there? 

Mr. TUNISON. What is it? 
Senator WATKINS. Is there anything in the treaty itself directed to 

the question of taxes? 
Mr. TuNISON. Why, the treaty says it is for their absolute and un­

disturbed use and occupation as an Indian reservation. 
Senator vV ATKINS. I think my deed to my home says the same thing 

but I pay taxes on it just the same. 
Mr. TuN1soN. I do not know what the deed to your home says. 
Senator WATKINS. It is in all deeds. It conveys a fee title and 

there is nothing in there that says it is going to be exempt from taxes, 
and I do not see anything in there that says if you are going to get 
benefits from society you should not have to pay something for those 
benefits. 

l\Ir. TuNISON. I will read you what Governor Stevens said on July 
19, 1855: 

On another point, I wish to speak plainly-­

Senator WATKINS. Who is this? 
Mr. TUNISON. Governor Stevens, the man who made this treaty, 

and these are the official minutes. 
Senator WATKINS. Read from the treaty and let us have what is 

in the treaty. "\Ve are talking about the treaty itself. 
Mr. TUNISON. I will read what he said: 
On another point, I wish to speak plainly. Within yourselves you will be 

governed by your own laws. The act will see that you are not interfered with 
but will support the authority of the chiefs. You will respect the laws which 
govern the white man, and the white man will respect your laws. We look 
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with favor on the missionaries who come among the Indians for they desire 
them and I think their coming may do good. The priest will be your frie~d 
but he will have no control over your affairs. The priest will advise you m 
your spiritual affairs, which relates to God, but he will have no control over 
your temporal affairs. Your own laws you will manage yourselves. 

That is the verbatim transcript. 
Senator,¥" ATKINS. They have come a long ways since the day when 

there were no other benefits out there except what they had on. the reser­
vation. I am pointing out to you the modern conditions ~nder which 
they are living. They are getting many benefits along with the other 
people, and in addition to that now they have been given the opportu­
nity of citizenship. They have embraced it and they go to the elec­
tions and they elect the county commissioners and they elect members 
of the legislature. They elect Congressmen and those Congressmen 
pass laws which require the payment of taxes. 

They have participated to that extent and they use the highways 
provided by the people of the United States and they go to the vari­
ous sections of the country and the cities and towns and they have 
opportunities for labor to improve the conditions. Over 600 of them 
have actually taken advantage of that. They get all of these other 
benefits and, at the same time, under your theory, they are not sup­
posed to make any contribution to that. They still have their prop­
erty and the conveyance of property ordinarily does not say whether 
it is going to be taxed or will not be taxed. That is one of the powers 
of the State; police power or whatever power you call it. 

That is to require of the members of society and of the American 
citizen certain contributions to help maintain the things that they 
are going to enjoy and get benefits from. 

I am trying to point out to you the overall benefits, and the overall 
situation which they have embraced of their own will. No one com­
pelled them to vote, and there is not any compulsory vote on that. 

I cannot see why a group that gets the benefits of society and all 
of these things should resist making their own contribution to it. If 
you say the property is not worth much, very well, they will not pay 
very much. Many of them, of course, are paying income taxes, and 
they are paying personal property taxes, and where they have gone 
into cities and towns where they bought property in their own names, 
independent of the Federal wardship, or guardianship, they pay taxes 
on that. So, to that extent, they have done that. 

Now, we have a rather extensive reservation here. It is made up 
largely of forest lands and grazing lands. We are talking now about 
saymg to th~ Indians who are away, if you are going to get the right 
to say anythmg about the management, you have to come back. Sup­
pose they did all come back. Would they have equal rights to living 
quarters and farming land and to grazing land on that reservation 
with the others? They have an equal ownership; could they have it~ 

Mr. TuNISON. Sure; they would. 
Senator WATKINS. There is plenty of land and plenty of room 1 
Mr. TuNISON. Well there are over 500,000 acres. 
Senator WATKINS. But what about farming land; could they get 

an equal farm with anyone else who lived there? 
Mr. TUNISON. Well, now, you are setting up first an entirely im­

probable situation. 
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Senator WATKINS. You mean if they come back? 
Mr. TuNISON. Yes, sir. 
Senator W ATKI:--s. There would be a big inducement if they can 

have anything to say about the management of this and they have to 
come back in order to have a voice in it and they might decide to go 
back. Suppose they did. 

Mr. TuNISON. There is plenty of room. 
Senator WATKINS. I am testing your theory. That is what I am 

doing to see how it works. 
Mr. TuNISON. There is plenty of room for all of them there. 
Se1;1ator WATKINS. That is physically, but with opportunities, I 

take it for granted it is like all reservations that the best lands and 
the best setups have already gone to Indians who are now there. 

Mr. TUNISON. And who sold them; all but 15. Subsequent testi­
mony will show you here that there are 15 original allotments still in 
the hands of the Indians. 

Senator WATKINS. But at any rate, these people you say still have 
a right to the tribal lands, and I am talking about the tribal lands and 
not those that are in individual allotments. 

Mr. TuNISON. Well, the fundamental difference of approach be­
tween the counsel for this tribe and the chairman of the committee, I 
think you have stated very fairly, Mr. Chairman. You have recited 
all of these advantages; and now I have recited to you the simple facts 
of a simple contract made 100 years ago with a group of unlettered 
Indians who did understand what the treaty said and what Governor 
Stevens told them. 

Now, if in your opinion it is the just and right thing for the United 
States to say to those people, "We are through with Government 
supervision of this, we are going to give you a patent to it; God bless 
you, do the best you can with it," they do not want you to do that and 
I do not want any doubt to be in the mind of this committee about 
their position. 

Now, I will grant you, you have the power to kick them out and turn 
them loose if you see fit to do it. 

Senator WATKINS. You would insist that this constitution, by these 
Indians who lived on the reservation, should be governing as to all of 
the Indians whether they are there or not? 

Mr. TUNISON. The management; yes. 
Senator WATKINS. You do concede, if Congress thinks that that is 

an unfair advantage taken of Indians who do not live there, that it 
could be repealed by the Congress? 

Mr. TUNISON. The Congress enacted the Wheeler-Howard Act, and 
you certainly have the power to repeal it. 

Senator WATKINS. That is precisely what we are trying to do in this 
bill. It is to repeal that, too; and it would go out with the rest of it. 
They would have to start over again if they wanted to do that. 

It has not ,rnrked very well in many places ,ve know. My own 
personal judgment is, if it permits them to setup such a constitution 
as you told us about, that it probably takes away, without just com­
pensation, one of the rights of an Indian who wanted to go somewhere 
else. 

Now, if the objective is to have these Indians integrated with the 
people of this country, to make them regular citizens with the rest 
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of the people, the constitution you are talking about has the contrary 
effect. It has the effect of trying to segregate the Indians and to put 
them on this reservation to keep them there. It is the type of philoso­
phy with respect to these Indians that would want them actually to 
stay pretty much as they were away back in the tribal days when they 
went into this treaty with the United States. 

I do not think that the majoriy of the Indians, on or off the reserva­
tion, want anything of that kind. It is my candid opinion that, if 
they would submit that to an honest vote of the Indians after the 
whole matter were explained and if those Indians were intelligent 
enough to see that it is to their interests, the interests of the Nation, 
and the interests of society in general, that they become an integrated 
part of this country, they would vote for some kind of proposal that 
would give them full and complete rights as American citizens to con­
trol their own property. 

And that is all we are trying to do. They would also vote as Ameri­
can citizens, and they would say, "Gentlemen, we are invited to share 
this civiliation with you. Although times have changed and events 
have transpired, we are going to recognize those changes. We want 
to do our humble part, if it is a humble part, in carrying on that Gov­
ernment. And we want to pay our part for whatever is necessary to 
keep it going." 

It seems to me that you folks are the ones who want to go back to 
the days of the treaty, segregate the Indians, and keep them there. 
Everything we have done, in an educational way and all of these helps 
that we have given them, has had for its objective the training of 
them so that they could be integrated. 

Now, if the tribe of Indians can keep their property from being 
taxed, those who live on their reservation, why is it not logical that 
all of the Indians who live off the reservation should likewise have 
their property not taxed ? 

Mr. TUNISON. Listen, at a meeting 4 years ago, I asked the board 
of equalization of the State of Montana who were good hardheaded 
I"anchers and country fellows, sitting around a table like this: "I want 
you fellow to say what you would do if we Montana Indians become 
a part of the Union. Your ancestors had a township of good grazing 
land and in order to get them to come into the Union, Congress passed 
an act or a treaty that he could come in and hold that land forever 
exempt from taxes." 

"No," I said, "would any one of you men sitting around this table 
voluntarily step up and say, 'I want to be a patriotic citizen and I 
want to pay taxes the same as anybody else?'" I did not get a single 
assent vote. 

Senator WATKINS. Did you present the other point of view, that 
is, of what their duty would be as citizens? 

Mr. TuNISON. I did not make as long a speech as you did, Your 
Honor. 

Senator WATKINS. I realize that you did not. And they probably 
took advantage of the fellows and appealed only to their personal 
side and not to their patriotic side? 

Mr. TUNISON. They were a pretty hardheaded crowd. 
Senator WATKINS. I will admit that to be so. Any citizen, of course, 

and I will say nearly any human being, does not like to carry any 
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more burdens than he has to carry. But there ought to be a concept 
deyeioped in this country that it 1s not only the right but also it is a 
pn":ile~e to pay taxes to help maintain our country, to maintain its 
mstitut10n~, and to make for progress. 

T~e Indians have taken advantage of the highways, the modern in­
ventions; and they do not want to live any more as their ancestors did 
when the treaty was made. Practically all of them are taking ad­
vantage of everything around them, that is, schools, health institutions, 
churches that are built according to our civilized standards, and all 
-of those things. 

~ am try~ng to bring out the general overall policv and basic 
philosophy m back of this bill. And we say to them, "Here is your 
prol?e.rty, f~ll-fledged American citizens. You have accepted the offer 
of c1tizensh1p, and you have come in now. Take a few of the obliga­
ti_ons ai:id go along, but manage your own property. Take this God­
given r1g_ht that no man ought to take away from you, to manage your 
own affairs without a guardian sitting over you to tell you whether 
you may come to Washington, spend a few dollars, or whether you 
may do ~his, that, or the other." 
. That ;s what we are trying to do for them. And it is the first time 
1~ my life t~at I have ever seen any American actually resist being 
given more hberty. 

Mr. TuNISON. Well, Your Honor, I realize that there is such a de­
bate. 

Senator WATKINS. Will you tell me where Americans have resisted? 
I. noti~e th:-i-t some of you Indians say that Americans do resist having 
liberties given to them. They fought for 1t everywhere. They are 
fighting for it now, and billions of dollars are being appropriated 
not only to keep themselves free, but also to keep other nations free. 

Will you please tell me. Is there any one here who has any idea 
that we are trying to take away liberties or that we are fighting against 
having liberties? I would like to know, if there is such an idea, what 
it is. 

Mr. TUNISON. You are not trying to take away liberties; you are 
are trying to take away contractual rights. We might as well have 
that issue right out plain on the table. 

Senator WATKINS. I have just one further thing; and then I will 
be through. 

What about this land that you said came in, and you used that 
illustration, "coming into the Union?" 

Incidentally, somebody else claimed some right to that; and we 
obtained that property by a claim of some kind or other, independent 
of the Indians, to start with. The treaty came in years after we took 
over the property. 

Mr. TUNISON. You took over the property and entered into a con­
tract with Great Britain in 1846. The State of Oregon was organized 
2 years later, in 1848, and then the northern part was split off. 

Now, as to ~ho owned that territory prior to 1846 was a widely 
disputed quest10n. 

Senator WATKINS. We took it by reason of discovery and as a re­
sult of what our English ancestors and others had done. If our right 
to any of it is good, probably our right to that area is just as good as 
our right to the rest. 
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Some would say that we do not have any r,ight to any of it, but 
I have not found anybody feeling that way who is willing to step 
up and give a deed back to the Indians for that part. 

Mr. TUNISON. As to who governed that country in 1846 and in 1855, 
probably Walter McDonald, the chairman of the tribal council, who 
is here, can tell you. His grandfather was the Hudson Bay factor 
out there. 

Now he was about as much law as anybody knew about in that 
country that was under the domain of Great Britain. That was all 
settled by this treaty of 1846 which did not disturb the Indians' right 
to the real ownership. 

Senator WATKINS. Of course, we assumed that we received some 
ownership by reason of discovery or settlement. We never did admit 
that the Indians had the right to own all of it. 

Mr. TUNISON. I do not know. The Supreme Court of the United 
States has spoken very strongly on the point of the validity of an 
original Indian ownership, and if they did not own it, who did own 
iU 

Certainly, this little band of colonists that landed on the coast of 
New England did not get it by landing on that coast. 

Senator WATKINS. They got whatever right anybody got by reason 
of coming here. Who were ahead of the Indians? 

Mr. TUNISON. I do not know. 
Senator WATKINS. Who did they take it from? 
Mr. TUNISON. They were here from time immemorial. 
Senator WATKINS. And we have been here for a long time. They 

did not have a right to control this whole part of the earth where 
8 million of them lived where the territory would support over 
200 million. 

Mr. TUNISON. When this treaty was made for that 16 million acres 
of land, he was in a suppliant position as compared with the Indians. 
He was going into a new raw, remote country and he wanted the 
right of white people to come into that territory and explore it, settle 
it, and get the Indians to live on a reservation. 

He was asking something from the Indians. He was asking them to 
surrender this 16 million acres, which they had owned from time im­
memorial. And he wrote that treaty and put that provision in it. 
Then Congress ratified it and the President proclaimed it. 

Senator WATKINS. I think that you have my view and I have yours. 
However, I have 1 or 2 questions on some of the practical things 

and then I will be ready to yield to my colleagues. 
At the present time, the United States is paying for the education 

of the Indian children from the Flathead Reservation in the State 
schools of Montana. Do you think the United States oucrht to go on 
doing that? 

0 

Mr. TUNISON. That is purely a matter of discretion with the United 
States. 

Senator WATKINS. Well, you would not object if we say that we 
are not going to do it any further in view of the fact that Indians 
are amply able to take care of that themselves? 

Mr. TUNISON. That is a matter for your committee and the Concrress 
to decide how far they want to go. · 

0 
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Senato~ WATKINS. Do you think we ought to go on contributing to 
~hese Indians out of the Public Treasury, that is, \Vhat we call gratu­
ity money to maintain health services? 

. Mr. To:N~SON. Well, on the question, Your Honor, of actual In­
dian :i,dmm1stration out there and on these various funds, I have no 
que~ti-on <;m the figures submitted by the Bureau of Indian Affairs and 
by Supermtendent Stone. I will ask the tribal delegates who are here 
to answer your question about whether that ought to be continued. 

Senator yV A'l'Krns. But that would not be your thoughts. I said, 
"Do :you thmk we ought to?" I am trying to get your point of view; 
that IS, not necessarily the Indians although I think you reflect what 
they think. ' 

Mr. Trx1soN. Well, I would say that it is rather common in this 
great Government of ours for the Government of the United States 
to encourage the education of various classes of young people. I see 
no reason why the Indians should be excepted from such a program. 

Senator WATKINS. I will agree with you. But do you think they 
ought to have it without a contribution? Is there any reason why 
they should not make a contribution to the maintaining of the schools? 

Mr. TUNISON. No. 
Senator ·WATKINS. Then you do not object to that. Of course, this 

bill would make it so that they would have to contribute. 
Now, the next one is with respect to the highways that they use. 

Do you think that they ought to make a contribution to the mainte­
nance of the highways on the reservation and off the reservation? 

Mr. TUNISON. Well, I think that that would go with some other 
problems; if the Indians were approached on whether they would 
be willing to surrender their treaty rights and make some contribu­
tions to these various State funds, that would be a different aJ?proach. 

Senator WATKINS. You would not want the county commissioners 
and the other people to say in the school district, "We are not going 
to let you go to school any more; we are not going to take a contract; 
we ·will not let you travel on our roads off the reservation; and we will 
not let you do a lot of these things that you are now permitted to do 
because you take the position that you have certain exclusive con­
tractual rights and you are insistino- on the contract?" 

What would be the situation? Do you think under those circum­
stances, if they are going to use those facilities, they ought to make a 
contribution? 

Mr. TuNISON. The State of Montana is not raising that question. 
Senator WATKINS. I did not ask you that. I ask you, do you think 

that they ought to? You are dodging the question. 
Mr. TUNISON. Well, I certainly do not intend to dodge any question 

you ask me. 
Senator WATKINS. What do you think? 
Mr. TuNISON. They do pay in the form of licenses. 
Senator WATKINS. I did not ask you whether they paid. I ask you, 

do you think that they ought to pay? 
Mr. TUNISON. Yes, sir. 
Senator vV ATKINS. That is the answer. I have no further questions. 
I have one further question that has been suggested to me. This is 

about your position "that this bill would not be so bad and it would 
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probably be all right if Congress did not put the property on the 
tax rolls." 

Mr. TUNISON. That is the fundamental objection to it, yes, sir. 
Senator WATKINS. That is what I understood. 
My colleagues may now go ahead. 
Representative D'EWART. I would like to return to your interpre­

tation of the Wheeler-Howard .Act because it is different from any­
thing that has been presented to our committee before. 

I have a copy of the act before us, and I will quote some of it. Then 
we will explore your interpretation of it. 

Title to any lands or rights acquired pursuant to this act shall be taken in 
the name of the United States in trust for the Indian tribe or individual Indian 
for which the land is acquired, and such lands or rights shall be exempt from 
State and local taxation. 

Now that means all of the tribe, does it not? Or does it mean a 
part of the tribe? 

Mr. TUNISON. I think that means the whole tribe. 
Representative D'EwART. I think so, too. 
Then we go over a little further in the act and it says: 
* * * to prevent the sale, disposition, lease or encumbrance of tribal lands, 

interests in lands, or other tribal assets without the consent of the tribe, * * * 
Now again, that means all of the tribe, does it not? 
Mr. TUNISON. Except to this extent: That each tribe has the right 

to decide its own membership. I have seen instances, repeatedly, in 
the Shoshone case where they were fortunate enough to get some oil a 
few years ago, of people applying for enrollment with various degrees 
of blood. 

The whole matter solemnly was submitted to the tribal council, the 
general council, and the vote was unanimously "No". ,v e have the 
authority to decide the membership of this tribe. And I see no incon­
sistency in the action of the flathead tribe in saying that the people 
who live on the reservation have the right to vote on tribal matters. 

Representative D'EwART. Let us pursue this a little further. You 
say that the tribe shall be governed by a majority vote of those who 
live on the reservation, is that a correct statement of your position i 

Mr. TUNISON. Congressman D'Ewart, with the highest regard for 
you, let me get the official statement on that. I want to get the 
charter issued to this tribe. 

Representative D'Ewart. We will get to the charter after a while. 
I am trying to talk about the Wheeler-Howard Act and not the charter. 
I am trying to find out an interpretation of this Wheeler-Howard 
Act. Under that act it says: 

Provided, That such charter shall not become operative until ratified at a 
special election by a majority vote of the adult Indians living on the reservation. 

Now it does not say that that majority of the Indians living on the 
reservation shall govern forever, but it simply says that the charter 
shall be adopted by a majority of the Indians living on the reserva­
tion. I quoted you the law just as it reads. I think that is important. 

Now, if the tribe itself in its charter wants to deprive some of its 
members of some of its property rights, that is another matter; but it 
is not the Wheeler-Howard Act that takes those rights away from 
some of those members. I want to make that clear._ 
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The charter may do it and I do not know whether it does or not: 
but !he _Wheeler-Howard Act does not deprive any member of a tribe 
of his rights as a member of that tribe. 

Mr. TUNISON. Then may I inquire, Mr. Congressman, if it is your 
po_sition t_hat_ Harold L. Ickes, Secretary of the Interior, _who issue~l 
this constitution and bylaws, which was approved by _the tribal council 
out there, and the charter issued-that that was an illegal act 1 

Representative D'EwART. I think Mr Ickes interpreted this act way 
bey<;md any interpretation intended by Mr. Wheeler. I !hink the 
testimony and other statements following enactment of this law by 
Mr. Wheeler bear forth that statement. 

Mr. TUNISON. My only answer to that would be that this tribe was 
o_ne of the first tribes to approve of a corporate charter and a constitu­
tion and bylaws back in 1935. 

Representative D'EwART. I am not arguing about the charter, but 
I am saying that the Wheeler-Howard Act did not deprive members 
of the tribe of any rights. That is the only point I am trying to make. 

Now if the Indians did it in their charter, that may be, and I do 
not know; but the Wheeler-Howard Act did not do that. 

Mr. TUNISON. Well, on that point, Your Honor, the charter savs, 
and I will just read it to you briefly. I will read from article' 4:, 
section 5: 

Any member of the confederated tribes of the Flathead Reservation who is 
21 years of age or over and who has maintained a legal residence for at least 
one year on the Flathead Reservntion shall be entitled to vote. 

Now, you have raised a new issue here, on me, and I have never 
gone back to the Wheeler-Howard Act to try to ascertain whether th<1t 
was a legal provision; but I can only say it has been in effect for over 
20 years, and this is the first time that I have heard it raised that that 
was an illegal provision. 

Representative D'Ewart. Again I would. like to read this pro­
vision, "such charter shall not become operative until ratified at a 
special election by a ~ajority vote of th~ ad~lt Indians living on the 
reservation," and that only refers to ratification of the charter. 

Mr. TUNISON. WP.ll, that charter bears this certificate: 
"Pursuant to section 17 of the Act of June 18, 1934, this charter, issued by the 

Secretary of the Interior to the confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribes, was 
duly submitted for ratificatfon to the adult Indians living on the rese,rvation and 
was on April 25, 1936, duly ratified by a vote of 425 for and 129 against in an 
election in which oYer 30 percent of those entitled to vote cast their .ballots. 
Edwin Duprey, chairman of the tribal council. 

Representative D'EwART. I apologize for taking so much time, but it 
seems to me that this is important to the tribe and also to the Congress 
because we deal w·ith this matter continually. 

Up here, according to the subject I read a little bit earlier, it is the 
tribe that votes on the disposition of property under the Wheeler­
Howard Act. They must consent, employ legal counsel, fix the fees, 
and so forth; and prevent the sale and disposition, lease or encum­
brance of tribal lands, interests in lands, or other tribal assets without 
the consent of the tribe. And you just said a few minutes ago that 
the tribe was all of the members. 

Mr. TUNISON. Yes, but I say, also, that the tribe has the right to limit 
the right to vote to those who live on that reservation just the same as 
they have the right to limit the roll. 
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Representative D'EwART. I will agree, they have a right to vote; _but 
they cannot under the Wheeler-Howard Act dispose of property with­
out the tribe giving its consent. And the tribe, as you say, is all of the 
members. That is what I am trying to say. 

Mr. TUNISON. The tribe has the right to limit the vote to those who 
live on the reservation. 

Representative D'EwART. That is right. 
But not for the disposition of property because that right is denied 

in the Wheeler-Howard Act. And all of the tribe and all of its mem­
bers must vote on the disposition of property, as I read out of the act, 
and as you, yourself, said a few minutes ago. 

Mr. TUNISON. If you want to take that position, I cannot help it. 
It is your construction of the act. The construction has been for 20 
years that the people living out there had the right to vote. If you 
want to change the law, or enforce an edict that everybody has to vote 
on everything, I will grant you may say that. 

Representative D'EwART. I would like to know if this tribe has dis­
posed of any property under your advice? 

Mr. TUNISON. No, sir. It would be against my advice if they did. 
My advice is to keep wb.at they have as long as they can. 

Representative D'EwART. I think you are on safe ground if you 
advise them not to without a vote of every member of the tribe. 

Senator WATKINS. There are many other things connected with the 
government of the tribe which they could vote on because it governs 
largely the people who are on the reservation. 

Mr. TuNISON. That is right. 
Senator WATKINS. The matter of property sale, conveyance, or any­

thing of that sort, would never come up under the ordinary circum­
stances? 

Mr. TUNISON. That is right. 
Senator WATKINS. Of course, you know ordinarily a man has to 

1,ign the deed before he can be divested of his property by conveyance 
of any kind? 

Mr. TUNISON. That is right. 
Senator WATKINS. Now, as I understand it, Mr. Tunison, you are 

here today as the attorney for this tribe of Indians? 
Mr. TUNISON. Yes, sir. 
Senator WATKINS. And you speak for them and the arguments you 

have presented here today are the arguments of this tribe? 
Mr. TuNISON. Well, I would not want to assume that what I have 

said were all of the arguments of this tribe. 
Senator WATKINS. But the principal arguments? 
Mr. TUNISON. Well, I would not even go that far, but I will say 

they are in behalf of the tribe, yes, sir. 
Senator WATKINS. I would assume that this tribe in hirino- an 

attorney would have hi~ P:esent the principal arguments. I think 
you have said that the prmcipal !1-rgumE:nt against this bill is the fact 
that if it goes through the Indians will have to pay taxes on this 
property when it comes into their possession and when they have 
fully unrestricted possession and control? 

Mr. TUNISON. That is my opinion. 
Now there are India~s sitting h~re who v3:lue the hunting rights 

which they have exclusively on this reservat10n and who value the 
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fishing rights which they have exclusively on this reservation as being 
of large value to them. I know they are. 

There are men, who I see sitting here, who go out and get an elk 
or deer and bring it home. It is part of their winter's meat. 

Now, if this becomes law, they cannot do that, and they come under 
the _S_tate law. So those are things and there are other things in 
add1t10n to this one thing of taxes that I have mentioned. 

Senator WATKINS. They want to take everything they can get :from 
the State and other people and, at the same time, give up nothing. 

Mr. TUNISON. Why should they not; it is their land, and they con-
tracted for it. 

Senator WATKINS. I want to make sure that that is the position. 
Mr. TUNISON. That is right. 
Senator WATKINS. I think that that is all that I have to ask you. 
Mr.. TUNISON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the 

committee. 
Senat?r WATKINS. We will argue with you a great deal and we will 

argue ,v1th lawyers more; but everybody here today apparently wants 
to be a lawyer. 

Mr. TUNISON. I thank you for your consideration, gentlemen. 
Senator WATKINS. We will call Mr. Walter McDonald. 
Before some of the members of the committee leave, we will say 

that we will continue this hearing at the conclusion of this session this 
afternoon until tomorrow moming at 10 o'clock. It ,vill be in this 
very room. And we will probably run until 1 o'clock tomorrow after­
noon. We are trying to finish the hearing on this bill tomorrow. 

STATEMENTS OF WALTER McDONALD, CHAIRMAN OF THE TRIBAL 
COUNCIL; WALTER MORIGEAU,.VICE CHAIRMAN OF THE TRIBAL 
COUNCIL; RUSSELL GARDIPE, TRIBAL LAND CLERK; AND STEVE 
DeMERE, TRIBAL MEMBER OF THE CONFEDERATED SALISH AND 
KOOTENAI TRIBES OF THE FLATHEAD RESERVATION 

Mr. McDONALD. Mr. Chairman and members of this committee, my 
name is Walter McDonald, chairman of the Tribal Council. 

Now, yesterday, I saw where the Department of the Interior had 
four of their men up who testified; and our position here today is 
that we would like to give the full information on timber, power sites, 
land, and irrigation. 

I wonder if it would be permissible for me to have my boys up here 
with me today, like it was yesterday. 

Senator WATKINS. Do you want some people up with you? 
Mr. McDONALD. Yes. 
Senator 1V ATKINS. You may surround yourself ,vith the whole tribe 

if you want to. We will not object, whether they are on the reser­
vation or off. 

Mr. McDoNALD. Thank you, sir. 
Senator "\VATKINS. State your name, your addl'l'::-iS. and what official 

position, if any, you occupy with the tribe of Indians known as the 
Flatheacls; also state the names of your colleagues who are sitting 
at the table with you. 
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